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PER CURI AM

In this direct crimnal appeal, Alie Harper challenges the 324-nonth
sentence inposed by the district court! following his guilty plea to
possessing with intent to distribute in excess of fifty grans of a m xture
or substance containing cocaine base, in violation of 21 USC §
841(a)(1). W affirm

W reject Harper's contention on appeal that the district court erred
in calculating his base offense | evel absent "proof by a preponderance of
the evidence that the form of cocai ne base possessed by Harper was actually
crack." Harper did not contend bel ow that the cocai ne base he possessed
was sonet hing ot her than
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crack cocai ne. Thus, his present challenge is subject to plain error
revi ew. See Fritz v. United States, 995 F.2d 136, 137 (8th G r. 1993),
cert. denied, 510 U S. 1075 (1994). W conclude there was no plain error
here, as the record denobnstrates Harper was aware that he was pleadi ng

guilty to an offense involving crack cocaine. The unchall enged offense
conduct portion of Harper's presentence report (PSR) clearly showed that
Har per possessed crack cocaine with intent to distribute. Further, Harper
inplicitly conceded to the type of cocaine involved by agreeing to the
PSR s deternination of his base offense |evel. See United States v.
LaRoche, 83 F.3d 958, 959 (8th Cir. 1996) (per curian) (district court
entitled to accept as true factual statenents in PSR to which defendant

does not object). Finally, Harper's objection at sentencing to the
enhanced penalties for crack versus powder cocai ne reveal ed his awareness
that his plea was to a crack-cocaine offense. Cf. United States v. Bush,
70 F.3d 557, 562 (8th Cir. 1996) (10th Cir. 1995) (sentencing for cocaine
base upheld where clear from defendant's adni ssions that he intended to

plead guilty to offense invol ving cocai ne base, not cocai ne powder), cert.
denied, 116 S. CG. 795 (1996). Accordingly, we affirm
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